
 

 

Y Pwyllgor Amgylchedd a Chynaliadwyedd 
 

Lleoliad: 
Canolfan hyfforddiant Lantra, Maes Sioe 
Frenhinol Cymru, Llanfair ym Muallt 

 

 

 

Dyddiad: 
Dydd Iau, 24 Hydref 2013  

 

Amser: 
13:00 

 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â:  

Alun Davidson 
Clerc y Pwyllgor 
029 2089 8639 
Pwyllgorac@cymru.gov.uk  
 

 

Agenda  
 

 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon   

2 Rheoli Tir yn Gynaliadwy: Tystiolaeth Lafar (13:00 - 13:45) 
(Tudalennau 1 - 27)  
 
E&S(4)-25-13 papur 1 : Undeb Cenedlaethol yr Amaethwyr Cymru 
E&S(4)-25-13 papur 2 : Undeb Amaethwyr Cymru 
 

Ed Bailey, Llywydd, Undeb Cenedlaethol yr Amaethwyr Cymru 
Dylan Morgan, Pennaeth Polisi/Dirprwy Gyfarwyddwr, Undeb Cenedlaethol yr 
Amaethwyr Cymru 
Gavin Williams, Cadeirydd, Pwyllgor Defnydd Tir a Materion Seneddol, Undeb 
Amaethwyr Cymru 
Rhian Nowell-Phillips, Dirprwy Gyfarwyddwr Polisi Amaethyddol, Undeb 
Amaethwyr Cymru  

3 Rheoli Tir yn Gynaliadwy: Tystiolaeth Lafar (13:45 - 14:30) 
(Tudalennau 28 - 41)  
 
E&S(4)-25-13 papur 3 : Clybiau Ffermwyr Ifanc Cymru  
E&S(4)-25-13 papur 4 : Cymdeithas Tir a Busnes Cefn Gwlad 
 

Ceri Davies, Is-gadeirydd, Materion Gwledig, Clybiau Ffermwyr Ifanc Cymru 
Sarah Price, Swyddog Datblygu Gwledig, Clybiau Ffermwyr Ifanc Cymru 
Ben Underwood, Cyfarwyddwr Cymru, Cymdeithas Tir a Busnes Cefn Gwlad 

Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus



 

 

 Keri Davies, Grŵp Organig Cymru  

4 Papurau i’w nodi  (Tudalennau 42 - 44)  
Cofnodion y cyfarfod ar 16 Hydref 
 

Sesiwn anffurfiol 

5 Rheoli Tir yn Gynaliadwy: Sesiwn anffurfiol i gwrdd â 
rhanddeiliaid (14:30 - 15:00)  



Eitem 2

Tudalen 1

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon



Tudalen 10

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon



 

   The heart of Welsh farming 
 

Although every effort has been made to ensure accuracy, neither the NFU 
nor the author can accept liability for errors and or omissions. © NFU 

Environment and Sustainability Committee 

E&S(4)-25-13 paper 1 

Inquiry into Sustainable Land Management : Evidence from NFU Cymru 

 

Introduction 

 

1. NFU Cymru represents 22,216 farmers, managers and partners in agricultural 

businesses including those with an interest in farming and the countryside, and is 

pleased to have the opportunity to be able to submit written evidence to this inquiry. 

Alongside this written submission we welcomed the opportunity to input into the 

committee’s stakeholder workshop on the 3rd July 2013 and we look forward to 

providing oral evidence to the inquiry in due course.  

 
2. Farmers manage over 80% of the Welsh land area and alongside their primary role of 

producing food, farmers throughout the centuries, have created and care for the 

wonderful landscape that we see today. Farmers sustain the balance between 

agricultural production and environmental management through a variety of 

methods whilst facing a number of challenges which will be touched upon within this 

submission. 

 

3. NFU Cymru believes that Welsh farmers have a very positive story to tell with regards 

to sustainable land management. First and foremost Welsh farmers provide safe, 

high quality food produced to world leading standards, they are the cornerstone of 

the £3bn Welsh food and drink sector. Alongside this farmers have created, care for 

and manage our treasured landscape. We estimate that nearly 800,000 hectares of 

land in Wales is currently within agri- environment schemes. Farmers are embracing 

renewable energy through looking at ways to harness the natural resources on their 

land and over the past 20 years or so we have seen a steady and consistent 

improvement in water quality. 

 

4. However the industry has dealt with and will continue to face significant economic, 

environmental and social challenges. Going forward, from our viewpoint, the key 

challenge must be to ensure the viability and profitability of farming businesses the 

length and breadth of Wales. We need to ensure that the conditions are put in place 

to facilitate farmers to be able increase food production, to feed an ever increasing 

population and at the same time ensuring protection and further enhancement of the 

environment. This presents a number of challenges that include ensuring farmers 

receive a fair return from the market place, adequate reward for the positive 

environmental work that farmers do alongside a Government that promotes, 

supports and champions the Welsh Agricultural sector. 

Tudalen 11



 

   The heart of Welsh farming 
 

Although every effort has been made to ensure accuracy, neither the NFU 
nor the author can accept liability for errors and or omissions. © NFU 

 

Sustainable Land Management 

 

5. For agriculture in Wales to meet the challenges highlighted in the previous 

paragraph, put simply, we need to “produce more but impact less on our 

environment”. The term ‘sustainable intensification’ was first formally coined by the 

Royal Society in a report it published in October 20091 as a means of encapsulating 

the most important single response to the global challenges of food security, 

environmental protection and climate change. Whilst the term can be contentious 

and different people may have differing views on what it may mean in practice we 

see it as: producing more, impacting less and we believe that if we strive to reach 

this goal then we will also be achieving the desired outcome of “sustainable land 

management in Wales”. 

 

6. Sustainable intensification isn’t an entirely new concept to farmers; it is something 

that many farming businesses have been making strides towards for some time. 

They have maintained and in some cases increased production without increasing 

the overall volume of inputs through technologies such as GPS, variety selection and 

precision farming. As an example of this the volume of nitrogen fertiliser used on 

farms in the UK has fallen by some 36% since the mid-1980s. 

 

7. As highlighted earlier in this submission commonly used words/terms in this field of 

work often have very different meanings to different people and in our view the 

definition of ‘Sustainable’ is often open to different interpretation. We feel it must 

cover three arms, environmental, social and economic. All too often we believe that 

there is not always a requirement to assess the social and economic impact of 

measures that protect the environment. We would argue that this has been the case 

with regards to policies and legislation such as the Habitats directive and Nitrates 

directives. The three different arms of sustainability need to be put on equal footing 

if we are to deliver sustainable land management across Wales. 

 

8. To deliver “sustainable land management” we need a range of mechanisms and 

policies to support farmers to help ensure that they can retain the capacity to 

produce food, to maintain viability and at the same time continue to protect and 

enhance the environment. In the following paragraphs we will highlight some of the 

current barriers and potential solutions to deliver on the outcomes that will help 

deliver sustainable land management in Wales. 

 

9. There needs to be adequate investment in applied research and Knowledge transfer. 

We need research to help us to understand better the interactions between the 

impacts of climate change, use of natural resources, wildlife species, habitats and 

Tudalen 12



 

   The heart of Welsh farming 
 

Although every effort has been made to ensure accuracy, neither the NFU 
nor the author can accept liability for errors and or omissions. © NFU 

food production. This knowledge must be transferred to advisers and farmers 

promptly and practically.  

 

10. We believe that that the UK Government’s new agri strategy could help lead to a step 

change in the efficiency, profitability and resilience of farming businesses. We are 

especially pleased to note that as a result of this strategy and contributions from 

other stakeholders Aberystwyth University unveiled plans at the 2013 Royal Welsh 

Show for an investment of £35m in the development of a new UK innovation and 

research campus. This offers a tremendous opportunity to take forward research to 

improve the productive potential of Welsh agriculture, it is vital that this research is 

quickly and effectively transferred to practitioners in the field. 

 

11. When discussion on agricultural science takes place the highly politicised issue of 

genetically modified crops (GM) is often raised. As a Union we believe that GM may 

well be a ‘tool in the box’ that the farming industry in Wales may require to meet the 

challenges going forward however no single technology, tool or farming system 

alone will allow us to produce more whilst impacting less on the environment. 

Promoting better and more efficient use of resources will involve many techniques, 

this may include precision farming, collaboration and investment with neighbouring 

farmers e.g. on machinery / reservoirs, improving the genetic potential of crops and 

animals and perhaps also alongside this the use, in future, of GM technology. 

 

12. Science is also crucial in terms of our ability to protect our livestock from animal 

disease incursion. In recent years we have faced many disease challenges some new 

to this part of the world e.g. Bluetongue, Schmallenberg, others e.g. Bovine TB have 

caused significant misery and suffering to farmers and their families for some time 

now. Science can find the solution to some of our problems and the development of 

a vaccine to provide protection against Bluetongue is an example of this. We hope 

that in the long term new scientific developments will provide additional tools to 

help in our battle to eradicate Btb from Wales but it is a source of great anger and 

disappointment to us that the Welsh Government is currently not prepared to follow 

a science led approach to tackling this horrendous disease. It is important that we 

look closely and follow developments in other countries where control programmes 

on diseases such as BVD are having a positive impact.        

 

13. Agri environment schemes contribute positively to the protection of landscapes, 

soils, water and biodiversity, it is important that all farmers wherever they are 

located and whatever their system of production have the opportunity to enter such 

schemes and that these schemes are practical and achievable to implement ‘on the 

ground’. Previous written and oral submissions to this committee have highlighted 

our concerns over Glastir and whilst some of these concerns have subsequently been 

Tudalen 13



 

   The heart of Welsh farming 
 

Although every effort has been made to ensure accuracy, neither the NFU 
nor the author can accept liability for errors and or omissions. © NFU 

addressed by Welsh Government we believe that there remains ‘room for 

improvement’ to help make this scheme suitable for all farming sectors and land 

types in Wales. 

 

14. We believe that there is significant merit in moving forward with a ‘part farm’ 

element to Glastir. With the right incentives and financial support more intensive 

holdings that have not previously considered agri environment schemes because of 

the need to include all land in the scheme would consider this as an option. This 

would have significant benefits for biodiversity and in helping to achieve water 

framework directive targets.  

 

15. The development of new mechanisms such as environmental markets for the goods 

and services that farmers provide should be investigated. Agri-environment schemes 

provide funding for certain services but because of the income foregone calculation 

(the required measure under EU Rural Development rules) farmers can only be 

offered the cost price for environmental work rather than a figure which is closer to 

the true value of the benefits delivered. We have long argued that this rule needs to 

be amended to enable agri-environment payments to offer real and consistent 

incentives to farmers and to take account of the benefits delivered rather than the 

income foregone. In terms of other market developments for environmental goods 

we can envisage, for example, the water industry, entering into agreements or 

contracts with farmers. Carbon trading schemes may have the potential to financially 

benefit many upland areas. We believe that the committee should investigate these 

possibilities further as part of this inquiry. 

 

16. Farmers can play their part in reducing the use of fossil fuels within the industry and 

across the wider economy through the growing of energy crops, the production of 

biogas and the use of other renewables such as small scale wind, solar, ground 

source and hydro but Government and regulatory bodies must overcome the barriers 

currently put in place through unsympathetic planning authorities, environmental 

permits and the like. We are concerned in particular at delays and problems 

encountered in seeking approval for small scale hydro schemes and feel that unless 

Natural Resources Wales are able to address these issues we will see these schemes 

gravitate to parts of the UK where the regulatory process has been simplified. 

 

17. There is a need for a planning policy framework which recognises the importance 

and value of sustainable food production alongside protecting the environment. A 

framework that recognises the diversity of agriculture production systems in Wales, 

the facilities required to improve efficiencies on farm to meet the exacting 

environmental standards that farmers must meet, the cost pressures they face and 

the welfare and food safety measures that they need to achieve. In addition farmers 

Tudalen 14



 

   The heart of Welsh farming 
 

Although every effort has been made to ensure accuracy, neither the NFU 
nor the author can accept liability for errors and or omissions. © NFU 

must have the opportunity to develop alternative income streams wherever they may 

be located in Wales. 

 

18. Delivering sustainable food supply chains will also help to deliver on sustainable land 

management and whilst we have seen progress on this matter over the last 12 

months with the introduction of an Adjudicator to police the existing legally binding 

groceries supply code of practice and a voluntary code of practice for dairy contracts 

there remains much more that needs to be done. Ensuring fairness and transparency 

throughout the supply chain so that farmers have confidence that they are receiving 

their rightful share of market returns is vital if they are to have the confidence to 

invest in their businesses. Developing shorter supply chains between primary 

producer and retailer alongside public procurement policies that support local and 

Welsh food production are ways to help build confidence in the supply chain and 

return a fairer share of the final value of the end product to the primary producer. 

 

19. The sustainability of Welsh Agriculture relies heavily on the ability to be able to sell 

our product outside of Wales, whether that is to the rest of the UK or in the case of 

red meat to markets overseas. It is important that we have the investment in Wales to 

be able to add value to as much as possible of our commodities here in Wales and 

that we have sufficient budget available to market our product to grow both volume 

and value in existing markets and to find and develop new markets. The repatriation 

of levy income lost from Wales as a result of Welsh cattle and sheep slaughtered 

across the border would help achieve this aim. 

 

20. Whilst this is not the inquiry to spend too much time discussing the CAP it is 

important that agricultural policies such as the CAP stimulate rather than inhibit 

sustainable land management. Direct payments play a vital role in providing a degree 

of income stability and a reasonable hedge against volatility. Market conditions and 

climatic events of the past 18 months or so have shown that this support is as 

relevant today as is has ever been. We will see substantial changes both in terms of 

the budget and policy in Wales over the course of the next EU multi annual financial 

framework period (2014-2020). It is important that where Welsh Government has the 

flexibility that they implement policies in Wales that support productive agriculture 

and ensure that we have fair treatment compared to our counterparts in other parts 

of the EU with whom we have to compete within the market place. 

 

21. In terms of Pillar 2 of the CAP we accept that as a result of Westminster Government 

negotiating tactics the Welsh Government is now facing a significant shortfall in 

Rural Development funding and will need to cut their cloth accordingly. Historically 

through ‘Axis 2’ measures rural development support has been crucial to support 

farmers to manage and care for their land through agri-environment support, LFA 

Tudalen 15



 

   The heart of Welsh farming 
 

Although every effort has been made to ensure accuracy, neither the NFU 
nor the author can accept liability for errors and or omissions. © NFU 

support and support for organic farmers. Whilst the axis approach to the rural 

development plan will not be continued under the next plan we believe that it 

remains important that priority in the next RDP is given to land management 

measures and this should include support for upland farming, a crucial element of 

LFA farm incomes for decades that the Welsh Government decided to discontinue 

with in 2012. 

 

22. The call for evidence makes reference to ecosystems services and this has been a 

phrase that has been much used in recent years but is not very user friendly, 

understandable or easily communicated. Whilst we are generally supportive of new 

mechanisms such as environmental markets for the goods and services that farmers 

provide many of which are viewed as environmental benefits (such as improved water 

quality), we do have some reservations about an ‘ecosystems service approach’ and 

how this will work in practice. For this approach to be progressed there is a need for 

it to be backed up by clear examples of how it will work in practice on farms in Wales 

and the opportunities and constraints that it may create.   

 

23. We see a danger that the value of services such as food, fuel and fibre production are 

undervalued, whilst market data is readily available for current values of agricultural 

produce we do not feel that these values recognise the future value to society of 

home-produced produce as supplies in a Global context will tighten in years to 

come. We do not feel that the importance of maintaining and preserving productive 

agricultural land for future food security has been properly considered, this has 

manifested itself with policies associated with flood risk management decision 

making processes. Conversely the valuation of a number of environmental benefits 

have the potential to be inflated if not carefully and correctly carried out as often 

proper consideration is not given to budget constraints. Much more work needs to 

be done before we can be confident that the correct economic methodology has 

been found. For the ecosystem services approach to work we need to find solutions 

to the ‘income foregone’ calculation that will allow farmers to be paid a figure closer 

to the true benefits of the environmental work they have undertaken. 

 

24. In terms of the most appropriate geographical scale(s) at which sustainable land 

management practices should be delivered across Wales by the very nature of our 

definition of sustainable land management we see this being achieved through 

adopting a countrywide approach – in effect many farmers and land managers taking 

small steps across the landscape to deliver this approach. NFU Cymru is convinced 

that Wales’ productive and efficient farmers can continue to produce food to feed a 

growing population at the same time as also contributing to biodiversity and meeting 

the challenges posed by climate change. We do not advocate a policy that would see 

an expansion of the site designation process, our preferred policy is very much 

Tudalen 16



 

   The heart of Welsh farming 
 

Although every effort has been made to ensure accuracy, neither the NFU 
nor the author can accept liability for errors and or omissions. © NFU 

based on countrywide policies that fit in, work alongside and are complimentary to 

productive agriculture. 

 

25. The inquiry asks how we develop a baseline from which to measure progress. This is 

a difficult question to answer and one where again we see progress needs to be 

measured in terms of ‘sustainable intensification’. We note that the Land use Policy 

group have recently published a research report2 that has looked at a farm business 

level how different actions impact at a farm level and part of the vision of the new UK 

Agri Tech strategy is to “take a global lead in agricultural informatics and in 

establishing the metrics and techniques by which progress towards sustainable 

intensification can be assessed”. Moving forward it is important that efforts to secure 

a way to measure progress are co-ordinated within the agri tech strategy and that 

they are easily understandable and ultimately practical to implement. 

 

26. The committee asks how we can ensure that our sustainable land management 

policies maintain vibrant rural communities and attract new entrants into the land 

based sector? Ultimately if we can ensure that farming businesses are profitable and 

able to make returns on investment, that they are adequately rewarded for the 

product that they produce whether it be food, fuel or environmental goods, that they 

have ready access to cutting edge research and technology and that Government 

actively promotes and supports their sector when and where it can then confidence 

will grow in the industry, investment will filter out into the wider rural communities 

and young people will see the land based sector as an area that they wish to build a 

career within. 

 

27.  A vibrant agricultural industry has significant knock on effects for the wider rural 

community. Whilst we immediately think of the obvious businesses such as 

agricultural supply merchants, feed businesses and vet practices as relying on farm 

businesses for their income, builders, electricians, plumbers, accountants and 

solicitors to name but a few in rural areas of Wales rely heavily on agriculture for 

their income. Calculating the benefit to the economy of Wales is difficult to 

determine due to lack of specific data, however, in the UK, agri supply was estimated 

to contribute £3.6 billion GVA to the UK economy in 2009. We must also not forget 

that farmers ensure Welsh culture and heritage remains at the heart of the 

countryside, with approximately half of farmers speaking Welsh. 

 

Conclusion 

 

28. The last 18 months have been particularly challenging for all sectors, the Dairy crisis 

of the summer 2012, the impact of weather on the 2012 harvest and autumn 

plantings, the volatility of lamb prices over the past 12 months and the severe 

Tudalen 17



 

   The heart of Welsh farming 
 

Although every effort has been made to ensure accuracy, neither the NFU 
nor the author can accept liability for errors and or omissions. © NFU 

weather storms of Spring 2013 have tested the resolve and resilience of the Welsh 

farming industry to the core. This inquiry alongside the on-going independent 

review into the resilience of farming in Wales is therefore very timely and we look 

forward to providing oral evidence to the committee later on this autumn.  

 

References 

 

1. http://royalsociety.org/policy/publications/2009/reaping-benefits/ 

2. LG Firbank et al, Evidence of Sustainable Intensification among British Farms, 

Agriculture, Ecosystems and Environment 173 (2013) 58-65. 

 

 

  

Tudalen 18



   

Environment and Sustainability Committee 

E&S(4)-25-13 paper 2 

Inquiry into Sustainable Land Management : Evidence from the 

Farmers’ Union of Wales 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

1. The Farmers’ Union of Wales (FUW) welcomes this opportunity to 

contribute to the Environment and Sustainability Committee’s 

Inquiry into Sustainable Land Management, with particular 

reference to how the Welsh agricultural sector can contribute to 

sustainable land management in the future. 

 

2. The FUW strongly believes that the systems and practices employed 

by farmers have created the landscape so cherished by residents 

and visitors alike and is a significant contributor to attracting 

tourists to Wales1. 

 

3. The farming systems and practices in Wales have also contributed 

greatly to the maintenance of the species and habitats that are 

present today and the fact that over 80% of Wales is subject to 

some form of conservation or environmental designation is 

testament to the way that livestock farming has largely retained 

valuable habitats over the generations. 

 

4. It is also important to acknowledge the vital role farmers have in 

food production and food security especially given the increasing 

global population, recent weather conditions and the longer term 

predictions of climate change. 

 

5. The agricultural sector in Wales has an important role to play in the 

mitigation of the effects of climate change through the 

sequestration of carbon in soils and the maintenance of these 

carbon stores.  This not only mitigates agricultural emissions but 

also provides a net benefit for other industrial sectors. 

 

 

                                                 
1 http://wales.gov.uk/docs/drah/publications/Tourism/130605wtvsapril13en.pdf  

Tudalen 19



   

 

Questions 

 

Question 1 

How we define the key ecosystems and ecosystem services in a way 

that makes sense for Wales? 

 

6. The FUW supports the need to look wider than individual species 

and habitats and believes that in developing new ways in which to 

consider new evidence streams, the experiences and traditional 

management methods undertaken by farmers should be inherent 

to this process. 

 

7. It is important to ensure that the environment and its 

conservation should be an inherent part of wider ecosystem 

services such as food production and the sustainable 

development of the rural economy. 

 

8. In the Unions view, there is a need to ensure that the wider 

ecosystem services are fully incorporated into environmental 

protection to provide an innovative new approach to sustainable 

land management through opportunities for a more holistic view 

of food production and environmental management.  

 

9. The Union believes that there are significant opportunities for 

promoting the extensive nature of production systems in Wales, 

the contribution grazing livestock makes to the ecology of Wales 

and the retention of carbon sinks in Wales due to traditional 

livestock production. 

 

10. The definition of an ecosystem has been in use since 19352 and 

whilst its concept has been debated for a considerable period of 

time by scientists, conservationists, and environment regulators, 

it has not yet been recognised by farmers (or indeed the wider 

public|) as part of their day-to-day activities despite the inherent 

role they play in the overall management and protection of the 

landscape and ecosystems in Wales.  

                                                 
2
http://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1111/j.1365-2435.1997.00081.x/pdf 

³  http://www.unep.org/maweb/en/Framework.aspx  

Tudalen 20



   

 

11. Ecosystem services are defined as ‘services provided by the 

natural environment that benefit people’. While there is no single, 

agreed method of categorising all ecosystem services, the 

Millennium Ecosystem Assessment framework³ is widely accepted 

as a useful starting point. 

 

12. Ecosystem services provide outputs or outcomes that directly 

and indirectly affect human wellbeing. Some of these ecosystem 

services are well known including food, fibre and fuel provision 

and the cultural services that provide benefits to people through 

recreation. Other services provided by ecosystems are less 

tangible and include climate regulation, the purification of air and 

water, flood protection, soil formation and nutrient cycling.  

 

13. Currently, these wider services are not generally considered 

within policy appraisal and represent an area where a greater and 

more systematic consideration could be useful. 

 

14. The term ‘ecosystem services’ has only come into general 

parlance in recent years.  This is despite the fact that farmers 

have been providing these services, for generations without 

realising it! 

 

15. Thus, any definition agreed needs to be easily understood, 

possibly using examples, to provide a context within which 

farmers can easily relate their own activities to the provision of 

ecosystem services. 

 

16. In identifying the key ecosystems present in Wales and to 

maintain simplicity, the Union believes that it would be 

appropriate to begin the process through the use of broad habitat 

groups.  These groups could be based on the habitats identified 

as part of the UK National Ecosystem Assessment – Mountains, 

moor and heath, Semi-natural grasslands, enclosed farmland, 

Woodland, Freshwater, wetlands and floodplains, Urban, and 

Coastal margins – as these are representative of the habitats in 

Wales. 

 

Tudalen 21



   

 

Question 2 

How do we develop a baseline from which to measure progress? This 

includes how we collect, coordinate and use data to support 

sustainable land management in Wales. 

 

17. Over recent years the Union has expressed concerns over the 

lack of Wales specific data for air, soil and water, which makes 

setting realistic targets and measuring progress almost 

impossible to undertake scientifically. 

 

18. Experience has shown that much of the work commissioned in 

the past was undertaken on a UK basis, which often fails to reflect 

the particular geography, topography and climate of Wales. 

 

19. It is clear from the publication of the ‘State of Nature’ Report, 

that whilst the data from Wales is incomplete, the national trend 

of species decline suggests that previous research and 

monitoring of agri-environmental schemes has not been robust 

enough to highlight these trends. 

  

20. The FUW is aware that the Glastir Scheme has in place a more 

robust monitoring and evaluation process which should go some 

way to improving the level of baseline data albeit within a 

relatively narrow range of parameters. 

 

21. The Union is also aware that there is a great deal of data 

available from a range of public, private and third sector sources, 

but that the collation and reporting of this data needs to be 

improved to ensure that it is available to all. 

 

22. Farmers are also becoming increasingly frustrated at the 

negative perceptions which are often associated with farming’s 

contribution to the management of the environment.  It is 

therefore vital that the contribution made by farming to the 

maintenance and protection of habitats and ecosystems is fully 

acknowledged as part of any evaluation of progress. 

 

 

Tudalen 22



   

23. The FUW believes that consideration should be given to how 

data, which covers non-market ecosystem services, such as 

carbon storage and the regulation of water flows, and the 

benefits they provide to wider society, should be recorded as a 

means of measuring progress of these services over time. 

 

Question 3 

What incentives we can provide land managers to develop sustainable 

practices, and in particular, any new sources of investment we can 

attract to support these? 

 

24. The Union believes that if the ecosystem services approach is to 

be fully integrated and adopted by land managers, then the wider 

delivery of ‘public goods’ should attract a market value like any 

other commodity. 

 

25.  Currently, agri-environmental payments supported under Pillar 

II of the CAP are made on the basis of compensation for profit 

foregone plus costs which cannot include a profit element. This 

means that there is little real incentive for farmers to adopt the 

wider provision of public goods and services on improved land or 

undertaking high nature value farming practises on semi natural 

areas. 

 

26. If the ecosystem services approach is to be successful in Wales, 

consideration must be given to enhancing the resources available 

under Pillar 2 of the CAP with additional incentives which would 

then make relatively small schemes more attractive to land 

managers. 

 

27. Examples of this would be to look at ways in which corporate 

money could be invested into schemes which would help offset 

carbon, provide alternative energy sources or upstream water 

quality/storage improvements 

 

28. Given its climatic, geographical and topographical influences, 

Wales’ agricultural sector is dominated by extensive grass-based 

farming systems which is most effectively utilised by grazing 

animals. 

Tudalen 23



   

 

29. The FUW is concerned that the current rate of de-stocking in the 

hills and uplands due to a combination of factors such as the loss 

of Tir Mynydd, poor market realisations and the unprecedented 

weather of the past few years, could lead to land abandonment to 

the detriment of ecosystem services and the wider rural economy  

 

30. The ecosystem services approach relies on a vibrant farming 

industry which can only be achieved through sustainable incomes 

for farmers and land managers. Farming makes a crucial 

contribution to the rural economy through the multiplier effect of 

its spend within the local area and thus, in order to achieve its 

wider societal objectives, farming needs  equitable returns for all 

of the services it provides. 

 

31. The development of the Rural Development Plan post 2013 

provides another opportunity for the concept of ecosystem 

services to be piloted.  The FUW believes that there are a number 

of incentives which could be considered, including, part farm 

schemes, targeted at specific objectives i.e. to meet Water 

Framework Directive priorities, targeted landscape scale co-

operative ventures or the development of innovative projects 

under LEADER to move the ecosystem services approach forward. 

  

32. There are a number of ‘pots’ of money available to the public, 

private and third sector and there is a need to consider whether a 

more collaborative approach to accessing funding opportunities 

would be possible in order to maximise the use of available 

resources and to provide match funding for larger projects.. 

 

Question 4 

How we ensure that our sustainable land management policies 

maintain vibrant rural communities and attract new entrants into the 

land-based sector? 

 

33. If rural communities are to prosper and survive they need to be 

able to continually evolve and develop over time.  The Union is 

concerned that the proliferation of statutory and non statutory 

designations in rural areas can have a negative impact on 

Tudalen 24



   

sustainable development which can create the stagnation of the 

Welsh countryside at the expense of thriving rural communities 

and its indigenous industries. 

 

34. The Union believes that instead of designations, which can 

foster resentment in rural areas, more effort should be made to 

encourage a partnership approach to conservation and 

sustainability through positive policies and initiatives such as 

community engagement, agri-environment schemes, 

encouraging diversification and working with rural people. 

 

35. The FUW supported the concept which underpinned the 

proposed Sustainable Development Bill believing that a 

sustainable development duty would be particularly pertinent in 

rural areas to encourage the retention and development of 

businesses and services which would, ultimately, result in vibrant 

rural communities and a thriving rural economy. 

 

36. The FUW believes that the sustainability outcomes envisaged by  

Welsh Government, particularly those relating to a sustainable 

economy and a sustainable society with a varied demographic 

structure, will only be achieved in rural areas if there are 

associated improvements to the provision of services including 

alternative energy infrastructure, broadband availability, public 

transport, local education facilities and local amenities. 

 

37. As outlined above, farmers and land managers need to make an 

income from their activities, not only to allow them to remain on 

the land, but also for the wellbeing of the rural economy, as many 

local businesses, services and facilities are dependent on farming 

families remaining in the area. 

 

38. The Union has been proactive in looking at ways in which to 

encourage new entrants into farming, through its ‘Younger Voice 

for Farming’ Committee and its support for a range of initiatives 

which help facilitate succession. 

 

39. One of the fundamental requirements for attracting new 

entrants into the Landbased industries is a sustainable and 

Tudalen 25



   

profitable sector so that young people see it as a realistic 

business opportunity for the future. 

 

40. The availability of agricultural land, for new entrants to start 

their own businesses, is of concern, particularly as the number of 

County Council owned holdings have decreased significantly over 

recent years.  The FUW believes that the Welsh Government 

should focus on identifying ways in which Local Authorities can 

be dissuaded from selling off or amalgamating these holdings so 

that they remain a valuable ‘first rung’ for new entrants. 

 

Question 5 

The most appropriate geographical scale(s) at which we should be 

delivering sustainable land management policies and practices in 

Wales? 

 

41. It needs to be recognised that the individual species and 

habitats that form an ecosystem do not respect defined 

boundaries and therefore it might not be appropriate to identify a 

‘one size fits all’ approach to the delivery of sustainable land 

management policies and practices. 

 

42. Given the wide variations in the geography and topography of 

Wales, the Union believes that consideration should be given to 

the use of a regional approach for the delivery of sustainable land 

management policies and practices as this will allow specific 

interventions to be developed and adopted to reflect local needs. 

 

43. The FUW believes that, to maintain simplicity and to enable 

comparisons to be drawn on the progress of sustainable land 

management policies and practices over time, there needs to be 

commonality with existing data.  Therefore, it would suggest that 

consideration be given to using a geographical scale which is 

based on the identification of broad habitat groups.  As identified 

earlier, these groups could be based on the broad habitats 

identified as part of the UK National Ecosystem Assessment. 

 

 

 

Tudalen 26



   

Question 6 

If there are key actions we can take to deliver short-term ‘quick wins’ 

and the actions we should be taking for the long-term? 

 

44. The development of a fully integrated ecosystem services 

approach is likely to be a long term aspiration although there are 

a number of short term ‘fixes’ which can help facilitate these 

aims. 

 

45.  In the short term, the FUW believes that progress needs to be 

made on improving the dialogue between farmers and 

conservationists in order to break down the lack of trust that has 

been built up over many years. 

 

46. The Union also believes that the concept of the ecosystem 

services approach needs to be communicated more widely and 

perhaps the term ‘ecosystem services’ itself could be changed to 

aid the understanding of all the processes that are involved. 

 

47. As outlined previously, it is important to ensure that the work 

already done on farms under agri-environment schemes is not 

lost and that the programmes developed under the next Rural 

Development Plan, both build upon these and also incorporate 

part farm elements which can meet specific objectives for Water, 

biodiversity etc. 

 

48. The FUW also believe that developing partnerships between 

private, public and third sector is extremely important as is 

ensuring resources are pooled where possible to maximise 

agreed objectives.  

 

49. Following agreement on the next CAP, the reduced budget and 

other reforms agreed as part of the process is likely to impact on 

farmers as they adapt to the new regime. It is important that 

Welsh Government puts in place the support and guidance 

needed to help them adapt their businesses to ensure a profitable 

and sustainable sector into the future. 

 

11th September 2013 

Tudalen 27



 

 

Ymateb CFfI Cymru i Ymchwiliad Pwyllgor Amgylchedd a 

Chynaliadwyedd Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i Reoli Tir yn 

Gynaliadwy 

 
Cyflwyniad 

 
Hoffai CFfI Cymru ddiolch i Bwyllgor Amgylchedd a Chynaliadwyedd Cynulliad Cenedlaethol 
Cymru am y cyfle i fynegi ei safbwyntiau.  

 
Cefndir 

 

Mae gan CFfI Cymru bron iawn 6,000 o aelodau ifanc 10-26 oed o bob cwr o Gymru. Rydym yn 
fudiad blaengar sy’n barod i gofleidio newidiadau er gwell ac annog datblygiad ieuenctid gwledig y 
wlad. 
 
Sut ydym am weld rheoli tir yn gynaliadwy yng Nghymru yn edrych a pha ganlyniadau 

rydym am eu sicrhau yn y tymor byr, canol tymor a'r tymor hir? 

 
Mae’n rhaid i reoli tir yn gynaliadwy yng Nghymru gynnwys tri maes: yr amgylchedd, bywyd 
gwyllt, ond yn hanfodol, cynhyrchu da byw.  Gwŷr unrhyw ffermwr fod yn tri yn mynd law yn llaw 
ac ni all unrhyw un ohonynt lwyddo heb y gweddill. 
 
Yn aml iawn, diffinnir cynaliadwyedd fel cynnal amgylchedd.  Fodd bynnag, prin yw gwerth 
amgylchedd i’r dyfodol heb bobl ynddo. Felly, i sicrhau rheoli tir yn gynaliadwy yng Nghymru, yn 
ogystal â gwarchod ei hamgylchedd, rhaid iddo hefyd olygu gwarchod dyfodol ein cymunedau a’r 
sawl sy’n byw ac yn gweithio ynddynt. Os esgeuluswn yr olaf o’r rhain, bydd cymunedau’n gwywo 
a marw. 
 
Fel ffermwyr, byddwn yn clywed llawer iawn ynghylch sut gall amaethyddiaeth Cymru a Phrydain 
ymdopi â phoblogaeth byd-eang sy’n cynyddu’n barhaus.  Fodd bynnag, cyn ystyried y byd, rhaid 
inni ystyried ein hunain yn gyntaf. Yn y lle cyntaf, credwn fod angen i system rheoli tir yn 
gynaliadwy yng Nghymru ein cynnal ni, pobl Cymru a Phrydain. 
 
Mae nodau tymor byr mewn amaethyddiaeth (y rhai sydd ag unrhyw werth go iawn, o leiaf) yn 
anodd eu cyflawni.  Credwn felly fod angen inni ystyried llwyddiant tymor hir, gan ganolbwyntio 
ar wneud Cymru yn fwy hunangynhaliol fel blaenoriaeth. Gwneir hyn ar y cyd ag agweddau 
amgylcheddol ffermio a rheoli tir. Gellir ennill arbedion o ran lleihau ein hôl troed carbon trwy 
ffermio'n dra-chywir, gwella bridio gan olygu llai o fewnbynnau, a defnyddio offer arloesol. Os 
bydd Cymru’n anghynhyrchiol, bydd arni angen mewnbwn uchel, a wnaiff gynhyrchu ôl troed 
carbon uwch. 
 
Beth yw’r rhwystrau sy’n ein hatal rhag sicrhau’r canlyniadau hyn yn awr?  Sut allwn 

oresgyn yr heriau hyn? 

 
Caiff rhai o’r rhwystrau sy’n bodoli eu creu trwy ganolbwyntio’n llwyr ar yr amgylchedd ac 
anifeiliaid gwyllt bychan: dull sydd bron iawn yn gibddall er lles yr hyn sy’n bodoli yn lle ystyried 
strategaeth gydgysylltiedig, tymor hir.  Er ein bod yn cefnogi'r cynlluniau Glastir newydd yn llwyr, 
rhaid cofio hefyd fod cefn gwlad hefyd yn bodoli i warchod ein da byw.  Enghraifft sy'n darlunio'r 
ddadl hon yw ffensys dwbl ac ailblannu hen wrychoedd. Mae hyn yn arfer amaethyddol da sy’n 
darparu cynefinoedd i fywyd gwyllt, ond i ychwanegu rhywbeth defnyddiol a chynaliadwy at hyn, 
gellid caniatáu i'r gwrych aildyfu ac yna ei blygu yn y dulliau traddodiadol, â ffens dynn fel bydd y 
gwrych yn cynnig lloches rhag y gwynt a'r glaw i dda byw newydd-anedig yn ystod misoedd 
anodd y gaeaf.  Fe wnaiff gwrych sydd wedi’i thocio’n dynn barhau'n drwchus yn ei bôn am lawer 
rhagor o flynyddoedd na gwrych y caniateir iddi dyfu allan ac i fyny.  Fe wnaiff hyn ddarparu 
amgylchiadau da i fywyd gwyllt, a chyflawni'r nod o gynorthwyo da byw. Fodd bynnag, yn ôl ein 
dealltwriaeth o’r cynlluniau presennol, ni ellir caniatáu taliadau gorgyffyrddol.  Felly, os derbynnir 
taliad dan un system, bydd dwylo’r ffermwr wedi’u clymu i raddau. 
 
Er bod pethau'n gwella, credwn canfyddiad y cyhoedd o sut gwarir arian trethdalwyr ar 
amaethyddiaeth ym Mhrydain yn wael.  Mae’r rhaglen difa moch daear yn Lloegr a’r sylw a 
gafodd hynny wedi gwneud niwed pellach i ganfyddiad y cyhoedd o’n diwydiant.  Mae’r sylw hwn 

Eitem 3

Tudalen 28



 

 

wedi canolbwyntio i raddau helaeth ar y moch daear, heb ystyried y 
canlyniadau torcalonnus a ddioddefir gan ffermwyr sy'n colli eu da byw, 
sydd wedi cymryd cenedlaethau i'w datblygu mewn rhai achosion.  Mae hyn 
wedi pwysleisio inni fod angen datblygu cysylltiadau llawer cryfach â’r 
cyhoedd ym Mhrydain, ac yn ein hachos ni, y cyhoedd yng Nghymru.  Er 
gallwn ymdrechu i fynd i'r afael â hyn ac rydym yn gwneud hynny, ni allwn 
wneud hynny ein hunain. 
 
Credwn fod canfyddiad y cyhoedd o sut gwarir arian trethdalwyr yn wael. Ystyrir fod symiau 
sylweddol iawn o arian yn cael eu rhoi i ffermwyr, ac ni ydynt yn deall pa enillion sy'n deillio o 
hynny. Mewn gwirionedd, darperir yr arian hwn i gynorthwyo'r boblogaeth i fwydo'u teuluoedd am 
lai o arian. Mae costau'n cynyddu'n gyson, felly mae'n rhaid i’n cynnyrch mwy nag adennill ei 
gostau.  Fodd bynnag, mae llinell denau rhwng ennill digon o arian i oroesi a phrisio ein hunain 
allan o’r farchnad. 
 
Os ydym yn fodlon cystadlu â chynhyrchwyr ym Mrasil sydd â rheolau rheoli tir sydd wedi’u llacio 
a chynhyrchwyr yn Seland Newydd a all ddefnyddio llawer mwy o feddyginiaethau na ni ac sydd 
ag ymagwedd llawer mwy rhyddfrydol at reoli plâu, yna mae’n rhaid i rywbeth gydbwyso hynny 
os dymunwn i Gymru barhau i gynhyrchu bwyd i’r dyfodol.   
 
Felly, gan ystyried y diwygiadau arfaethedig yn nhaliadau'r PAC (mae ymgynghori yn dal i 
ddigwydd ynghylch y manylion), mae hyn yn debygol o gael ei dynhau ymhellach.  Bydd taliadau 
newydd y PAC yn un o’r prif ffactorau ysgogol sy’n dylanwadu ar ddulliau a ddefnyddir i 
gynhyrchu bwyd ac mae angen gwella hyder y gymuned amaethyddol i fod yn barod i ymdopi â 
thoriadau mewn taliadau yn ystod y blynyddoedd sydd i ddod.  Deallwn fod y darlun ymhell o fod 
yn wastad, ond credwn hefyd fod angen inni wybod fod ein llywodraeth yn barod i weithio gyda 
ni, nid newid yr amcanion yn rheolaidd.  
 
Beth yw'r prif yrwyr polisi a sut gellir llunio hyn i oresgyn yr heriau hyn? 

 
Fel y dywedwyd eisoes, clywn yn aml ynghylch sut gall amaethyddiaeth ymdopi â phoblogaeth 
fyd-eang sy'n dal i gynyddu. Mae hyn yn awgrymu fod y llywodraeth am inni gynhyrchu bwyd.  
Fodd bynnag, caiff hyn ei wrth-ddweud gan elfen “werdd" Glastir, sy’n annog 75% o borfa 
barhaol; yn syml, ni all y ddau gydfodoli (gan gymryd yn ganiataol fod ein dealltwriaeth o ystyr 
porfa barhaol yn gywir). Mae angen mynegi neges gliriach: mae cynllunio menter busnes 
cynaliadwy yn anodd iawn pan newidir blaenoriaethau ac agendâu yn rheolaidd.    
 
Ystyriwn y dylai cyfyngu ar ôl troed carbon ein gwaith cynhyrchu bwyd fod yn yrrwr allweddol.  
Gellir lleihau colledion carbon trwy annog a chymell y defnydd o arloesedd (er enghraifft, hadu 
slot a phwytho’r tir) i gyflawni dulliau mwy cynhyrchiol a wnaiff sicrhau effeithlonrwydd uwch.   
Bydd effeithlonrwydd uchel y tir yn golygu defnyddio llai o wrteithiau a thanwydd, ac felly, ôl 
troed carbon is.   
 
Fel y dywedir uchod, rydym yn disgwyl canlyniad cynigion newydd y PAC.  Mae hyn yn achosi 
penbleth, oherwydd credwn fod angen mynd i'r afael â'r ddau fater gyda'i gilydd, a gallai ein 
hymateb i'r ymgynghoriad newid os newidir y cynigion ynghylch newidiadau PAC. 
 
Sut ydym yn diffinio ecosystemau a gwasanaethau ecosystem allweddol mewn ffordd 

sy’n gwneud synnwyr i Gymru? 

 
Mae ecosystemau yn golygu cydbwysedd, ond dylai’r cydbwysedd hwn ystyried mwy na’r 
amgylchedd naturiol yn unig.  Mae poblogaeth Cymru yn cynyddu, ac mae angen inni sicrhau y 
caiff cydbwysedd ecosystemau ei gynnal, ond mewn modd sy’n gweithio i’n poblogaeth ac yn 
gwneud synnwyr i Gymru.  Mae hyn yn cynnwys ein hanghenion i fwyta a byw.  Felly, mae angen 
inni ystyried yr angen i gynhyrchu bwyd, ynni a thai mewn modd sy’n diwallu’r anghenion hyn. 
 
Rhaid defnyddio ynni adnewyddadwy yn gyfrifol i warchod ecosystemau.  Gellir gwneud rhagor i 
annog ffermwyr, tirfeddianwyr a’r boblogaeth yn gyffredinol i gofleidio ynni adnewyddadwy.  Fodd 
bynnag, rhaid inni gofio fod arwynebedd tir Cymru yn gyfyngedig, felly, i lwyddo i gynnal twf gan 
gydbwyso'r holl anghenion uchod, datblygu'r hyn sydd gennym eisoes yw'r unig ffordd ymlaen.  
Er enghraifft, annog y defnydd o baneli solar ar doeau, nid datblygu caeau solar.   

Tudalen 29



 

 

 
Dylem hefyd sicrhau fod cydbwysedd bywyd gwyllt yn cael ei gynnal, gan 
ystyried sut mae ffermio wedi bod yn rhan o'r ecosystem honno yn 
hanesyddol. Er enghraifft, mae cynnydd yn yr achosion o diwberciwlosis 
wedi cyd-daro â'r gwaharddiad ar gladdu stoc marw ar ffermydd.  Er nad 
oes gennym ddata empirig, rydym yn cwestiynu a yw'r enghraifft hon o 
ddiddymu un o ffynonellau bwyd ysglyfaethwyr cigysol megis moch daear wedi’u gorfodi i 
grwydro’n ehangach, ac yn sgil hynny, lledaenu’r clefyd ymhellach.  Ni all fod yn gyd-ddigwyddiad 
ychwaith fod nifer yr adar sy'n nythu ar y ddaear a mamaliaid bychan wedi gostwng law yn llaw â 
hyn.  
 
Sut ydym yn datblygu llinell sylfaen iesur cynnyddf? Mae hyn yn cynnwys sut ydym yn 

casglu, cydgysylltu a defnyddio data i gefnogi rheoli tir yn gynaliadwy yng Nghymru. 

 
Mae’r ymgynghoriad hwn yn gofyn am awgrym o linell sylfaen i’w defnyddio i fesur ein cynydd o 
ran pa mor hunangynhaliol yr ydym fel gwlad. Yn yr 1980au cynnar, roeddem yn 78% 
hunangynhaliol, a bellach, rydym yn 58.9% hunangynhaliol. Mae hyn yn golygu fod 40% 
anhygoel o’r hyn a ddefnyddiwn yn cael ei fewnforio. Bu cnnydd o 5% i 3,063,456 ym 
mhoblogaeth Cymru erbyn 2011. Dyma duedd sy'n debygol o barhau.  Awgrymwn felly y dylid 
defnyddio 58.9% fel llinell sylfaen ac annog ein ffermwyr i barhau i gynhyrchu bwyd sydd ymhlith 
y gorau yn y bydd o ran ei ansawdd a chynhyrchu rhagor yn unol â hynny. 
 
 
Sut gallwn sicrhau fod ein polisïau rheoli tir yn gynaliadwy yn cynnal cymunedau 

gwledig llewyrchus ac yn denu newydd-ddyfodiaid i’r sector diwydiannau’r tir? 

 
Rydych yn gofyn sut gallwn sicrhau fod polisi yn cynnal cymunedau gwledig llewyrchus ac yn 
denu newydd-ddyfodiaid i sectorau diwydiannau'r tir. Credwn fod angen inni sicrhau dyfodol i’r 
sawl sydd eisoes yn gweithio yn y sectorau hynny cyn ystyried denu newydd-ddyfodiaid. Mae gan 
nifer fawr o ffermwyr ifanc sawl swydd i ganiatáu iddynt ddal dau ben llinyn ynghyd neu gymryd 
y cam cyntaf tuag at hunangyflogaeth. Ni fydd y sector diwydiannau’r tir yn ddeniadol nes daw’n 
yrfa broffidiol. Gallwn ystyried ffrydiau incwm eraill megis ynni adnewyddadwy i greu incwm 
ychwanegol, ond yn y bôn, ffermwyr ydym ni a chynhyrchu yw ein gwaith.   
 
Mae’n rhaid i'r gwaith o ddenu newydd-ddyfodiaid i'r sector diwydiannau'r tir ganolbwyntio ar bobl 
ifanc. Rydym mewn sefyllfa dda i gynorthwyo i gyflawni’r amcan hon oherwydd ystadegau 
demograffig ein haelodaeth.  Bydd ein haelodau'n cwyno nad yw cynghorwyr gyrfaoedd yn 
gwybod llawer am y cyfleoedd sydd ar gael yn sectorau diwydiannau'r tir (yn enwedig yn achos 
pobl ifanc academaidd), a gellid gwella’n sylweddol y ddealltwriaeth o ffyrdd o gychwyn yn y 
diwydiannau hyn. Wrth wneud penderfyniadau am yrfaoedd i’r dyfodol, bydd pobl ifanc yn 
ystyried a allant ddatblygu gyrfa gynaliadwy iddynt hwy eu hunain yn y dyfodol yn y maes o’u 
dewis.  Bydd hyn yn golygu sicrhau bwyd digonol, tai ac ynni rhad.  Yn rhy aml, bydd cymunedau 
gwledig yn dioddef gan ddiffyg tai fforddiadwy, costau tanwydd uchel a diffyg mynediad at fand 
llydan. Bydd y symudiad at ddarparu gwasanaethau ar-lein yn unig yn broblem os na fydd gan y 
sawl sy'n ceisio cyrchu'r gwasanaethau hynny fynediad at y rhyngrwyd. Rhaid ystyried hyn wrth 
ddatblygu polisïau yn ymwneud â rhannu gwybodaeth a dulliau o gefnogi cymunedau gwledig.  
Hefyd, yn achos llawer o bobl ifanc gwledig, mae’r gallu i fyw yn agos i'w gweithle yn ffactor 
hollbwysig i sicrhau dyfodol cynaliadwy. Rhaid i reolau cynllunio adlewyrchu anghenion y 
gymuned gyfan, nid y sefydliad sydd â'r lleisiau uchaf yn unig. 
 
Yn olaf, bydd ein haelodau yn dweud fod arnynt angen llonydd i barhau i ffermio, yn lle cael eu 
llesteirio gan waith papur neu eu gorfodi i fod yn geidwaid.  Mae arnom eisiau cynhyrchu bwyd i’n 
gwlad, ac wrth wneud hynny, credwn y gallwn hefyd gyflawni defnydd tir cynaliadwy wrth i 
gynhyrchedd uchel gael ei gyfuno ag arferion rheoli tir da.   
 
A oes camau allweddol y gallwn eu cymryd i gyflawni atebion sydyn yn y tymor byr a 

chamau y dylem eu cymryd yn y tymor hir? 

 
Mae’n anodd cyflawni atebion sydyn â chymaint o ffactorau anhysbys ar hyn o bryd (o ran sut 
datblygir y PAC yn y dyfodol a'r gefnogaeth a fydd ar gael). Fodd bynnag, un awgrym fuasai 

Tudalen 30



 

 

cymell y defnydd o baneli solar ar doeau ac adeileddau presennol eraill i 
warchod tir Cymru rhag cael ei ddefnyddio i wneud hyn.   
 
Blaenoriaeth allweddol arall yw sicrhau fod gweision sifil a’r sawl sy’n 
gyfrifol am weinyddu’r cynlluniau neu’r rheolaethau a sefydlir yn cael eu 
hyfforddi’n llawn ac yn gyfarwydd â’r cynlluniau hynny a'r dewisiadau ar 
gael i'r sawl sy'n eu defnyddio. Mae hyn yn wir hefyd yn achos cynlluniau amlasiantaethol, 
oherwydd, yn rhy aml, ni fydd staff yn gallu cynorthwyo ac ni fydd neb i’w weld yn gwybod yr 
ateb, a phennir terfynau amser afrealistig. Mae cynllunio trwyadl yn hanfodol i sicrhau 
darpariaeth gadarn. 
 
Unwaith eto, mae annog mynediad ledled Cymru at fand eang cyflym iawn sy’n caniatáu i 
fusnesau gwledig weithredu’n llawn yn hanfodol cyn symud at ddefnydd gorfodol o gyfleusterau 
ar-lein.  Mae hyn yn golygu fod rhaid i gefnogaeth wyneb yn wyneb a dros y ffôn fod ar gael nes 
caiff hynny’n ei sicrhau. 
 
Croesawn y cyfle i drafod hyn yn fanylach. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 31



 
 

Environment and Sustainability Committee 

E&S(4)-25-13 paper 4 

Inquiry into Sustainable Land Management : Evidence from CLA Wales 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

The Country Land & Business Association (CLA) represents approximately 4,000 

members in Wales. Our members both live and work within rural areas; they operate 

a wide range of businesses including residential, agricultural, tourism and 

commercial ventures – at the last count the CLA represents some 250 different types 

of rural businesses. CLA members own or manage approximately half the rural land 

in Wales including edge of settlement locations and some urban portfolios.   

2. SUSTAINABLE LAND MANAGEMENT 

 

Sustainable land management involves the sustainable management of all land, 

including the agricultural and forestry sectors, whilst safeguarding ecosystem 

resilience.  Farm and other land-based rural businesses must be economically, as 

well as environmentally and socially sustainable.   

 

A vital consideration in achieving sustainable land management is to adopt a whole 

farm approach.  Farms are integrated businesses.  Land management includes 

agriculture, forestry, environmental service delivery, tourism, recreation, food and 

forest product processing and marketing, sporting shooting and property 

Tudalen 32



 
 

management. There are strong interactions between these activities and there are 

strong and complex relationships between the environmental variables 

Ecosystem Services 

 

Sustainable land management is best delivered through an ecosystem approach. 

Ecosystem services are a broader range of environmental services that land 

managers provide, or could provide, to society than simply the saleable products of 

farming, forestry and rural recreation.  These services are characterised as: 

provisioning (food, timber, fibre, water); regulating (carbon sequestration, water 

purification, air, soil erosion, disease outbreaks); supporting (soil formation, 

nutrient cycling); and cultural services (recreation and tourism, landscape, wildlife). 

Together all these services of the natural environment are vital for human well-

being.  The Welsh countryside is managed primarily for provisioning services (food 

and timber).    

 

Most Welsh ecosystem services are, and can only be, provided by farmers and 

foresters. Historically, the costs of managing the ecosystem services falls on farmers 

and foresters, yet the main benefits farmers and foresters can realise is from the 

marketed services such as food and timber.  It is therefore hardly surprising that the 

non-marketed, or public good and services, are under-provided. Society wants 

them, but has few ways of paying for them.  This is a classic example of market 

failure and is pervasive in rural land management. 

 

A sustainable living standard will not be achieved by dependence on selling 

agricultural products alone. Land managers should not be expected to cross-

subsidise the delivery of environmental public goods and services from their market 

returns. It is therefore necessary to ensure that proper public payment for the value 

of public goods and services delivered is guaranteed.   

 

We need to find new ways to pay for all the habitats, biodiversity and other 

environmental benefits that society wants and which only farmers and landowners 

can provide. Diversification of revenue sources is key to sustainable land 

Tudalen 33



 
 

management.  Newer opportunities come from selling other ecosystem services, 

such as renewable energy from biomass, wind and hydro; water and climate 

protection by storing water and carbon and by purifying water, and by providing 

biodiversity and cultural landscapes services.  The critical requirements are to 

develop the right frameworks for public and private payment for more of these non-

market services, and to ensure that rural infrastructure and the planning system 

support rural economic development. 

 

Farming businesses currently receive the majority of their funding for managing the 

environmental measures on the farm through Government funding agri-

environment schemes. The next CAP reform, due to commence in 2015, will see this 

pot of money significantly lowered. It is vital that opportunities for supporting 

ecosystem services are explored beyond such schemes, in order to move to a source 

of private funding which provide rewards greater than income foregone and can be 

relied on in the longer term.  

 

The Welsh Government should look to drive action at a local and landscape scale to 

develop mechanisms to improve the delivery of ecosystem services. It is imperative 

that the Government engages with landowners at the earliest opportunity.  

 

 Core Principles 

 

Rural land managers have been practicing sustainable development for generations.  

In essence, the vast majority of landowners want to hand on to their successors an 

asset that is at least as economically, environmentally, and socially valuable as it 

was when they took it on.  This strikes us as going to the core of what sustainable 

development means in practice.  

 

It is very difficult to envisage any land manager being successful without practicing 

sustainable development.  The overwhelming majority of them need to derive an 

income from their land and are keen for their successors to continue to do so too.  

 

Tudalen 34



 
 

As such every land manager needs to ensure that his exploitation of the land does 

not result in it been harmed over the long term.  He/she needs to ensure, for 

example, that good soil and water quality is retained so successors can continue to 

farm sustainably.  

 

Similarly, much of what the land provides can only be delivered over the long term.  

As a result, the more prudent landowners undertake activities that will not yield any 

results in their own lifetime, but which will provide an income for their children or 

grandchildren.  The planting of woodlands and creation of watercourses would be 

common examples of this.  

 

The CLA believes that a number of core principles underlie sustainable land 

management, which can help provide solutions to environmental problems.  These 

are that society should: 

 

� take an inter-generational time view 

� in a science-based approach 

� engaging the voluntary participation of those affected 

� using measures proportional to the issue/ problem 

� where possible, relying on a decentralised approach 

� working with natural cycles 

� and do all this with a presumption of private property rights and responsibilities. 

 

3. CLIMATE CHANGE 

 

The Welsh Government’s Climate Change Strategy sets an annual 3% reduction in 

greenhouse gas emissions in Wales. To give full effect to delivering this target, the 

Welsh Government should establish a long-term land management policy to 

mitigate climate change. 

The land-based contributions to mitigation are to: 

� reduce Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions 

� store carbon in soils and trees 

Tudalen 35



 
 

� help energy substitution by producing land-based renewable energy 

� help material substitution by enabling greater use of timber and its products to 

replace more GHG-emitting building materials. 

 

Managing ecosystems at a landscape scale will be integral to encouraging effective 

adaptation to the effects of climate change on species populations and distribution, 

through the linking of habitats and features across the agricultural landscape.  

 

Greenhouse Gas Action Plan 

 

The CLA and other organisations representing the agricultural industry in England 

have signed up to a voluntary Greenhouse Gas Action Plan (GHGAP) setting out how 

the industry will reduce its greenhouse gas emissions by three million tonnes of CO2 

equivalents from 2018-2022 without compromising domestic production.  

The Action Plan focuses on how farmers, regardless of their farming system, can 

become more efficient to help reduce greenhouse gas emissions while making cost 

savings per unit of production. The Plan aims to make the most of existing 

initiatives such as the "Industry Roadmaps" and nutrient management ("Tried & 

Tested"), and will report on the progress made by farmers and land managers as 

they improve their use of energy, nutrients and their own carbon footprint. The 

Welsh Assembly may wish to consider adopting a similar initiative for Wales. 

In the longer term farmers and  land managers will have to do more than improve 

efficiency to meet the emissions targets and will have to consider how actual 

emissions could be reduced which would involve land use change, for example, 

planting trees . 

The Welsh Government should consider how best to encourage efficiency savings for 

agriculture and what mechanisms should be put in place to properly incentivise and 

reward tree planting. 

 

Peat Management 

 

Tudalen 36



 
 

The stock of carbon stored in peatland is a significant environmental asset, with 400 

million tonnes of carbon stored in peatlands in Wales’ uplands.   It is essential the 

appropriate management techniques for maintaining peatland are introduced to 

allow land based businesses to help moderate climate change. 

 

Importantly peatland restoration projects in Wales have the potential to generate 

carbon credits for the GHG benefits they deliver through the voluntary market. This 

could be a new source of funding for land managers if companies are prepared to 

buy credits from domestic peat carbon projects.  

For this to be viable, companies would need to have complete confidence that a 

specific restoration project would deliver quantifiable GHG benefits. The Welsh 

Government needs to take steps to facilitate this approach.  

  

4. ADVICE 

 

Advice is an essential element when implementing environmental schemes, to 

ensure ownership of the scheme and best placement of options.  The Welsh 

Government should consider how to ensure advice is provided on local priorities for 

agri-environment.  This level of support will be extremely valuable as we move into 

the next period of CAP. 

 

5. BIODIVERSITY 

 

CLA fully supports the desire to improve biodiversity, but policies to achieve this 

must recognise the need to produce food and run other land based businesses 

efficiently  

 

The Welsh Government should ensure that the right balance is secured. This can be 

achieved by:  

  

Tudalen 37



 
 

� acknowledging that biodiversity cannot be so heavily reliant on Pillar 2 agri-

environment payments, which are already facing drastic cuts and are the source 

of the most targeted funding for on farm environmental measures.  

� exploring the potential for market based solutions such as biodiversity 

offsetting  

� ensuring agri-environment schemes continue to be flexible and tailored to farm 

level whilst remaining accessible to all  

• acknowledging that whilst protected sites, such as SSSIs (14% of  SSSIs in Wales 

are in the uplands), have been effective at stopping further rare habitat 

destruction, their restrictive nature often increases the cost of management of 

sites, resulting in economically unviable management for farmers. Designations 

must work with a changing landscape, so as not to restrict the land use within 

them solely to management for the environment, which in itself is 

unsustainable.  

 

6. PLANNING  

 

The planning system must provide for a stable and flexible regime that can deliver 

quicker, less expensive decisions while taking a balanced approach to the concept 

of sustainable development by:  

 

• promoting and encouraging a mix of development in rural areas 

• providing for a sufficient infrastructure of employment sites, housing, transport, 

public and private services to support the long-term sustainability of rural 

communities 

• recognising that environmental stewardship is best achieved with the willing and 

active commitment of landowners and land managers 

• recognising the changes in land use that will occur as the implications of climate 

change become more apparent. 

 

 

7. REFORM OF THE EU’s COMMON AGRICULTURAL POLICY (CAP) 

 

Tudalen 38



 
 

The CAP is a main policy driver influencing land managers.  It is vital that reform of 

the CAP results in a direct payment system that supports land managers in adopting 

sustainable land management.  The CLA would go further in advocating greater 

support for upland farms. 

 

We need a CAP that both provides a level playing field for farmers across the EU and 

which recognises all the work farmers do for biodiversity and the natural 

environment.  

 

European direct payments received under the CAP are channelled in very different 

ways through different EU Member States; The CLA welcomes this flexibility to be 

able to reward environmentally sustainable land management in Wales; however the 

Welsh Government must ensure that payment support does not have attached 

conditions that go significantly beyond those of other Member States. To do so 

could jeopardise the competitiveness and fairness of the CAP for Welsh landowners 

and managers.  

 

8. BIOTECHNOLOGY  

 

Biotechnology provides a much broader application of science than GM; GM is just 

one of many areas comprised by biotechnology. Genetic Modification provides one 

of the most significant tools in delivering sustainable land management allowing 

increased yields, healthier livestock and environmental protection. 

 

The livestock sector arguably has more to gain from biotechnology, where 

genetic-based research is preventing disease, improving overall welfare and 

reducing 

input costs. The CLA argues that this sector’s existing work must be encouraged 

and supported by Welsh Government for it to flourish. 

 

The UK has one of the best traditions of agricultural technology research in the 

world, and the Welsh Government needs to get on board and champion our 

excellence in the sector.  

 

9.  BARRIERS 

Tudalen 39



 
 

 

The CLA believes the principal barriers to achieving sustainable land management 

goals are: 

� an economic system that undervalues the role of the natural environment 

� land managers access to relevant information and advice and knowledge transfer 

� the ability to attract new sources of funding 

� provision of a reliable, affordable, high speed internet connection 

� the planning system 

� science led approaches taken to any decision on restricting or withdrawing 

chemical inputs. 

 

Red Tape 

 

One of the key constraints in the rural economy, both in terms of agricultural and 

non-agricultural businesses, is the increasing impact of Government red tape. While 

it is recognised that Government efforts to reduce the negative impact of red tape, it 

is still the case that it is one of the greatest barriers to realising the potential of the 

rural economy. According to the Commission for Rural Communities, the failure to 

fully exploit this potential costs the rural economy some £361 billion per year. 

 

Present and future efforts that focus on securing savings through the greater use of 

digital are laudable. However, such efforts fail to realise that for many who live and 

work in rural areas still have no access to an effective and affordable broadband 

connection. The CLA believes that if red tape is to be reduced through this 

mechanism, those who are impacted the most must be able to utilise a suitable 

digital connection 

 

Regulatory burdens 

 

The CLA remains concerned by the regulatory barriers introduced concerning the 

use of plant protection products, as a result of limited scientific evidence. Ensuring 

that a sustainable long term approach is taken to managing chemical inputs, such 

Tudalen 40



 
 

as pesticides and herbicides as part of land management in Wales is important. 

Achieving the right balance of biodiversity in respect to areas of fauna, foliage and 

grassland requires proactive decision making from land managers. Land managers 

must be able to have as many tools at their disposal to prevent unwanted 

encroachment of scrub or invasive species such as bracken. Controlling these 

requires a thorough long term management approach from landowners and the 

Welsh Government.  

 

Tudalen 41



 

Y Pwyllgor Amgylchedd a Chynaliadwyedd 

 

Lleoliad: Ystafell Bwyllgora 3 - y Senedd 
 

 

  
Dyddiad:  Dydd Mercher, 16 Hydref 2013 

 

  
Amser:  09:00 - 12:50 

 

  Gellir gwylio’r cyfarfod ar Senedd TV yn: 

http://www.senedd.tv/archiveplayer.jsf?v=cy_400000_16_10_2013&t=0&l=cy 

 

 

 

Cofnodion Cryno: 

 

   
Aelodau’r Cynulliad:  Dafydd Elis-Thomas (Cadeirydd) 

Mick Antoniw 

Russell George 

Llyr Gruffydd 

Julie Morgan 

William Powell 

Antoinette Sandbach 

Joyce Watson 

 

  

   
Tystion:  Jeff Cuthbert, Weinidog Cymunedau a Threchu Tlodi 

Alun Davies, Gweinidog Cyfoeth Naturiol a Bwyd 

Jane Hutt, Gweinidog Cyllid 

Andrew Charles, Llywodraeth Cymru 

Christianne Glossop, Y Prif Swyddog Milfeddygol, 

Llywodraeth Cymru 

Julia Hill, Llywodraeth Cymru 

Fiona Leadbitter, Llywodraeth Cymru 

Jo Salway, Llywodraeth Cymru 

Andrew Slade, Llywodraeth Cymru 

 

  

   
Staff y Pwyllgor:  Alun Davidson (Clerc) 

Eitem 4

Tudalen 42



  Naomi Stocks (Ail Clerc) 

Catherine Hunt (Dirprwy Glerc) 

Gwyn Griffiths (Cynghorydd Cyfreithiol) 

Nia Seaton (Ymchwilydd) 

Chloe Corbyn (Ymchwilydd) 

 

 

TRAWSGRIFIAD 

Gweld trawsgrifiad o’r cyfarfod.  

 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon  

1.1 Cafwyd ymddiheuriadau gan Julie James.  Nid oedd unrhyw un yn dirprwyo ar ei 

rhan. 

 

2 Cyllideb ddrafft 2014-2015: Craffu ar waith y Gweinidog Cyfoeth 

Naturiol a Bwyd  

2.1 Bu'r Gweinidog Cyfoeth Naturiol a Bwyd a'i swyddogion yn ateb cwestiynau gan 

aelodau'r Pwyllgor. 

 

3 Cyllideb ddrafft 2014-2015: Craffu ar waith y Gweinidog Cymunedau a 

Threchu Tlodi  

3.1 Bu'r Gweinidog Cymunedau a Threchu Tlodi a'r Gweinidog Cyllid yn ateb 

cwestiynau gan aelodau'r Pwyllgor ar brif ffrydio datblygu cynaliadwy yn y broses 

gyllidebu. 

 

3.2 Cytunodd y Gweinidog Cymunedau a Threchu Tlodi i ddarparu ffigurau penodol i 

ddangos sut y mae'r gyllideb ddrafft wedi'i diwygio o ganlyniad i ystyried effaith 

datblygu cynaliadwy ar raglenni. 

 

4 Y Bil Rheoli Ceffylau (Cymru): Tystiolaeth gan y Gweinidog Cyfoeth 

Naturiol a Bwyd  

2.1 Bu'r Gweinidog Cyfoeth Naturiol a Bwyd a'i swyddogion yn ateb cwestiynau gan 

aelodau'r Pwyllgor. 

 

5 Papurau i’w nodi  

5.1 Nododd y Pwyllgor y cofnodion. 

 

Cyllideb ddrafft 2014-2015 - Papur gan y Gweinidog Diwylliant a Chwaraeon  

5.2 Nododd y Pwyllgor y papur. 

Tudalen 43



 

Cyllideb ddrafft 2014-2015 - Papur gan y Gweinidog Tai ac Adfywio  

5.3 Nododd y Pwyllgor y papur. 

 

6 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y cyhoedd o'r 

cyfarfod ar gyfer eitem 7  

6.1 Cytunodd y Pwyllgor ar y cynnig. 

 

7 Trafod y dystiolaeth  

7.1 Trafododd y Pwyllgor y dystiolaeth a gafodd ar y gyllideb ddrafft 2014 – 15 a'r Bil 

Rheoli Ceffylau (Cymru). 

 

 

Tudalen 44


	Agenda
	2 Rheoli Tir yn Gynaliadwy: Tystiolaeth Lafar
	Rheoli Tir yn Gynaliadwy : Geirfa Gymraeg
	Papur 1 (Saesneg yn unig)
	Papur 2 (Saesneg yn unig)

	3 Rheoli Tir yn Gynaliadwy: Tystiolaeth Lafar
	Papur 4 (Saesneg yn unig)

	4 Papurau i™w nodi

